ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 25, 2003
8:04 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 4( STA)
Rel ati ng to Aval anche Awareness Mont h.

- MOVED HCS CSSCR 4(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 109
"An Act relating to the limtation on paynent of state treasury
warrants; and providing for an effective date."”
- MOVED CSHB 109( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 31
"An Act relating to initiative and referendum petitions; and
providing for an effective date."”
- MOVED HB 31 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5
Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Al aska relating to initiative and referendum petitions.
- MOVED HIR 5 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: SCR 4

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 25, 2003



SHORT TI TLE: AVALANCHE AWARENESS MONTH

SENATOR(S) GREEN

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA
STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211
Moved CSSCR 4( STA) Qut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( STA)
STA RPT CS 3DP SAME TI TLE
DP: STEVENS G COANDERY, DYSON
FN1: ZERQ(S. STA)
RULES TO CALENDAR 3/ 12/ 2003
READ THE SECOND TI ME
STA CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
COSPONSOR( S) : HOFFMAN, DAVI S,
STEVENS G
PASSED Y19 N El1
TRANSM TTED TO (H)
VERSI ON:  CSSCR 4( STA)
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA
CROSS SPONSOR(S): LYNN
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: TREASURY WARRANTS/ LAPSED APPROPRI ATl ONS
STATE AFFAI RS

SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 19/ 03 0221
02/ 19/ 03 0221
03/ 06/ 03

03/ 06/ 03

03/ 06/ 03

03/ 10/ 03 0448
03/ 10/ 03 0448
03/ 10/ 03 0448
03/12/03 0479
03/12/03 0479
03/12/03 0479
03/12/03 0479
03/12/03 0479
03/12/03 0480
03/12/03 0480
03/ 14/ 03 0531
03/ 14/ 03 0531
03/19/03 0595
03/ 25/ 03

BILL: HB 109
SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 19/ 03 0248
02/ 19/ 03 0248
03/13/03

03/13/03

03/18/03

03/18/03

03/ 25/ 03

BILL: HB 31

~—

3323z 2

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, FIN
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: | NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS
REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LLI AMS

SPONSOR( S) :

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

March 25, 2003



Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0039 (H PREFI LE RELEASED ( 1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0039 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0039 (H STA, JUD

03/ 04/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 04/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 03 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 25/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HIR 5

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM | NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS

SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LLI AVB

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 04/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 04/ 03 (H Heard & Held

03/ 04/ 03 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 25/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR LYDA GREEN
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SCR 4.

AEDENE ARTHUR, Cof ounder
Backcountry Aval anche Awareness and Response Team
(Address not provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SCR 4.

BOB JANES
Dougl as, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SCR 4.

LI NDA SYLVESTER, St aff

to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 109 on behalf
State Affairs Standing Conmttee, sponsor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3-

of the House

March 25, 2003



KI M GARNERO, Director

Di vi sion of Finance

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions for the conmttee during
t he hearing on HB 109.

RACHEL LEW S, Uncl ai ned Property Section

Treasury Division

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions on HB 109.

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 31.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL W LLI AVS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 31 and
HIR 5.

VI RG NI A BREEZE, El ections Projects Coordinator

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered question on HB 31 and HIR 5.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-29, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Dahlstrom Lynn, Berkowi tz, Guenberg, and Wuyhrauch
were present at the call to order.

SCR  4- AVALANCHE AWARENESS MONTH

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
CS FOR SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 4(STA), Relating to
Aval anche Awar eness Mbnt h.

Number 0111

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 25, 2003



SENATOR LYDA GREEN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SCR 4,
told the committee there have been an wuntold nunber of
[ aval anche-rel ated] tragedies in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough

She related her personal knowl edge of those affected by
aval anche tragedy and the efforts of people to increase
aval anche awareness. The proposed resolution would draw
attention to and honor those who begin an education program In
response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch, she noted sone areas
where "hi ghmarking" occurs. She said people's efforts to expand
aval anche awareness have resulted in donations, f undi ng,
net wor ki ng, and educational videos and teachi ng gui des.

Number 0393

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG began discussion of Anmendnent 1. On
page 2, line 1, after "Novenber 2003", he suggested adding "and
each succeedi ng Novenber".

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH pr oposed just saying "the nonth of Novenber".
SENATOR GREEN concurr ed.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH, in response to a comrent by Senator Geen, said
it wouldn't involve a [title] change. He clarified that
[ Avendnment 1] would change the |anguage to read, "the Al aska
State Legislature proclainms the nonth of Novenber as Aval anche
Awar eness Mont h; ".

CHAI R VEEYHRAUCH announced that w thout objection, Anmendnent 1
was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0545

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there were any plans to put
noney towards aval anche safety.

SENATOR GREEN replied that it is such a huge issue, no anount of
noney is enough; that she has tried to figure out if there is a
way to create a gathering point from which to extrapolate
information for avalanche awareness, but that it is such a
noving target, it is very difficult; and that she would attenpt
to get funds into the programfor this year.

Nunmber 0730

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he has "run anmendnents the | ast
couple of years, trying to put noney back in." He said forner
Governor Know es wanted an avalanche awareness program and
wanted to inprove search and rescue. He noted that one of his
own anendnments had been for  $350, 000, which would be
"barebones.” He stated his understanding that [Al aska] had nore
fatalities than any other state |ast year, not just per capita.
He said anything [the legislature] could do to nake Alaska a
safer state would be great. He nentioned the efforts of
[former] Senator Halford and Representative Kerttula to put
noney into [aval anche-related issues], but said that is a
pi eceneal approach. He opined that sone of the greatest
aval anche experts in the country are in Alaska and that their
know edge should be used to develop a system that could be the
envy of all the nountain regions in the world.

Nunmber 0818

AEDENE ARTHUR, Cofounder, Backcountry Aval anche Awareness and
Response Team noted that as a Mom On a Mssion (MOVW she also
speaks for the famlies who have |ost |oved ones in aval anches,
including the famlies of the 14 young people who were killed in
1999 in avalanches in Al aska. Ms. Arthur said it is very
difficult for nobst people to canpaign when they have lost a
child. Testifying in support of [SCR 4], M. Arthur said she
thinks the anmendnent to make Novenber aval anche awareness nonth
every year is wonderful. She added, "W do use this nonth to
pronote aval anche awareness and education to all backcountry
travelers in the state of Alaska, with the intent of saving
lives and preventing injuries in aval anches."

M5. ARTHUR said the nonth has also been used to teach, in the
cl assroom the inportance of carrying and knowi ng how to use the
basi ¢ aval anche gear of beacons, probes, and shovels. She noted
that about 40 percent of people [caught by an aval anche] are
killed by the initial trauna. Regardi ng those who survive, she
said, "The only way you have of getting someone out and givVing

them a chance to live ... is if you can find them quickly and
get them out with a beacon.” She said a person has 15 to 20
mnutes of air. After that time, if a search and rescue team

has to be called, it is usually for a body recovery.
Number 0990
M5. ARTHUR explained why this issue is so inportant to her and

her husband. They cane to Alaska in 1968 with their three-year-
ol d daughter to teach. A son and anot her daughter were born,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 25, 2003



and the famly noved to Palner in 1982, where they |ived and
wor ked until retirenment. Unfortunately, their son died in the
March 21 aval anche at Turnagain Pass, along with 5 other young
men, when a section a mle wde came down the nountain. Between
March and May of that year, 13 people in Al aska were |lost. She
pointed out that it is not just people on snow machi nes that get

caught by aval anches. Victinms have included people working,
hi ki ng, skiing, and snowshoei ng. Drivers in some areas can put
themselves in harms way, too, she said, if the snow is
unst abl e.

Nunber 1178

M5. ARTHUR noted the typical profile of those who die in
aval anches across the United States as follows: male, educated,
experienced in their sport, in their 20s to 30s and, in Al aska,
into their 40s. M. Arthur told the commttee that when her son
di ed, he was 29, had been married seven nonths, and |left behind
over 80 famly nenbers. She said, "W nourn his |oss just
exactly as if it was yesterday." She said one reason she works
hard on this canpaign is so other nothers don't have to worry
about their children. She added that not only did she and her
husband | ose their son that day, but his body wasn't found for
nore than two nonths. Referring to a previous conment by Chair
Weyhrauch, Ms. Arthur said it's not just "highmarkers" who die;
it relates to the snow s stability and the underlying |ayer, but
a person can't always tell by | ooking. She opined that people
should be able to call to find out conditions from experts, just
as pilots do before they fly.

Number 1330

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM t hanked Ms. Arthur for testifying. He told
her that his son takes helicopters up to teach skiing in the
Val dez area, and that his nother purchased an aval anche kit for
hi m He asked Ms. Arthur if she is aware of a kit that's
avai |l abl e.

M5. ARTHUR answered that the beacon, probe, and shovel are the
basi ¢ aval anche gear to get people out if they get buried. She

said she was aware that other things have been devel oped. She
said her son had everything including a beacon, but still wasn't
found for two nonths because the aval anche was so huge. She

noted that Carl Skustad, a federal ranger in G rdwod, checks
snow conditions and "checks with people" and has set up a nunber
to call to find out current conditions at Turnagain Pass. She
t hanked Senator G een and indicated that the snall anount of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 25, 2003



noney "that got through” has been used to do "a trenendous
anount of things all over the state.”

Number 1530

BOB JANES told the commttee he has been a resident of Dougl as
for 38 years, during which time he worked for the U S. Forest
Service for 18 years and was involved in wnter sports
adm ni stration, ski area devel opnent, aval anche awareness, and
"the whole arena of that outdoor recreation industry."” He
t hanked Representative Berkowitz for his remark regarding
fundi ng, because he said he has a great deal of interest in that
subj ect . He said Ms. Arthur adequately covered "statistics and
issues.” He told nenbers he was testifying in support of [SCR
4] both as a concerned citizen and as a current volunteer board
menber of the Sout heast Al aska Aval anche Center in Juneau.

MR. JANES advised the commttee that in the early 1980s, the
U S. Forest Service was a |lead agency in helping to devel op and
operate a statewi de aval anche warning system for Al aska. He
noted that it was an effort anong 12 governnent agencies -
federal, state, and nunicipal - that was cooperatively funded,
managed, and devel oped. He said, "My job, at that tine, was to
represent that agency in this effort.” M. Janes opined that
[ SCR 4] should help strengthen the awareness of the dangers and
ri sks involved wth snow aval anches throughout Al aska. He al so
voi ced hope that it may be a step toward restoring operation of
a statew de aval anche warning systemthat would be fully capable
of neeting the needs of effective aval anche education, which is
currently ongoi ng. He noted, "The one missing elenment is
adequate forecasting nethods.” He said he is confident that an
adequate system <could be restored for Alaska wth the
restoration of a |arge cooperative effort.

Nunber 1748

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ noved to report CSSCR 4(STA), as
anended, out of committee with individual reconmendations and
the acconmpanying fiscal note. There being no objection,
HCS CSSCR 4(STA) was reported from the House State Affairs
St andi ng Conmittee.

HB 109- TREASURY WARRANTS

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 109, "An Act relating to the Ilimtation on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 25, 2003



paynment of state treasury warrants; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunber 1790

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS), Version 23-LS0581\D, Kurtz, 3/24/03, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version D was before the
committee.

Number 1843

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 109 on behalf of the House State
Affairs Standing Conmttee, sponsor, noting that it was
i ntroduced at the request of the Mirkowski Adm nistration. She
said it is an efficiency bill with a zero fiscal note, and seeks
to address inconsistencies in statute. The first relates to
state warrants, which is how the state nakes paynents to itself
and for contracts, for exanple. The other statute that the bil
addresses is the unclai ned property Act.

M5. SYLVESTER explained that [Version D] has "one slight
change.” Currently, state warrants can be presented for paynent
for up to two years, after which tine they are turned over to
the general fund. She explained, "If the books have cl osed,

the departnents have to do a separate appropriation.”™ Referring
to a copy of the supplenental budget [HB 110] in packets and to
a tagged item on [page 9], she stated, "That itemon the top is
how the ... Departnent of Adm nistration presents these stale-
dated warrants for paynent."

MS. SYLVESTER referred to a handout ["Stale Date Warrant Re-
Appropriation Request FY 2003-1"] that shows a list of paynents,
sone small. She remarked, "This is the cunbersonme way that the
departnments have to get these paynents processed because of our
budgeting system"™ She explained that originally the intent was
to change the deadline to one year; however, at the request of
Representative Guenberg, the limt was dropped to six nonths,
whi ch nmakes it conformw th the Uniform Conmercial Code (UCC)

Number 1943

KIM GARNERO, Director, Division of Finance, Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA), testified as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 25, 2003



W in the Division of Finance pay vendors, grantees,
and enployees for the State of Al aska. When our
warrants are not cashed within tw years, the |aw
currently requires that the anmount revert to the
general fund in a process know as stal e-dating. When
those individuals whose checks were not cashed |ater
cone forward and nmake their claimon uncashed warrants
known, a new appropriation is required before we can
pay them Cains can be required to wait up to a year
before the appropriation is in place and paynent can
be nmade. This is frustrating for both the clainant
and the state agency, which nust track this process.

M5. GARNERO noted that this year's stale-date appropriation
totaled $44,917.00 for 20 warrants, "and you're |ooking at the

list.” She continued as foll ows:
That ... fast-track supplenental that the governor
signed | ast week, ... those warrants have now gone out

t he door. Already |'ve heard of another $24,000 in
stale-dated warrants we need to get into the next
appropriation cycle. The stale-date |law has been in
pl ace since the 1960s. In 1986, Al aska adopted the
uncl ai mred properties statutes in Title 34, The
| egi sl ative proposal before you today will shorten the
tinmeframe, as [Ms. Sylvester] said, and change the
handling of wuncashed warrants to treat them as
uncl ai med property.

The uncl ai ned property program is admnistered by the
Department of Revenue and actively seeks to match
rightful owners to their property. Treating uncashed
as unclainmed property will expedite paynents to these
val id property owners.

M5. GARNERO noted that Rachel Lewis, admnistrator for the
uncl ai med properties programin the Departnment of Revenue, could
answer questions on that program whereas she herself could
address the current stal e-dating process.

Nunber 2043

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how nmany warrants the state
i ssues, what percentage are stale-dated "with two years, ... one
year, ... six nonths,” and how that translates to "increased

noney to the general fund."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 25, 2003



M5. GARNERO replied that she doesn't know regarding tota
warrants; however, in fiscal year 2002 (FY 02) 4,000 warrants
wer e st al e-dat ed. In further response regarding the total of
noney, she answered that she doesn't know, but will find out.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "And of that anmount, 44,000
awards requested to be ..."

M5. GARNERO said, "d aimnts cane forward."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he wants to know how nuch noney is
bei ng di scussed and what happens when the date is accelerated.
He said he also wants to know how the six-nonth period conpares
with what private individuals or entities would have "before
they can wite things off."

M5. GARNERO responded, "I believe, through ny discussions on the
UCC with Representative Guenberg, that private enterprise is
si x nonths on checks".

Nunber 2128

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has had an interest in this
issue since 1986, when he introduced a bill to make state
warrants checks cone under the UCC. He offered his belief that
the state should be up to date in this regard, since "everybody
in the world is under the Uniform Commercial Code." He referred
to AS 45.04.404 as the part of statute that specifies the tine
period of six nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this problem was precipitated
because banks were having a lot of problens as a result of what
turned out to be an erroneous |egal opinion from the Departnent
of Law. It was the state's position that its warrants weren't
negoti abl e instrunments, which neant they could be dishonored and
not cashed, for a nunber of reasons. He said this issue went to
the Al aska Suprene Court. He nentioned National Bank of Al aska
v. Univentures and said that ultimately the suprene court agreed
that state warrants, under the Uniform Commercial Code in
AS 45.03.104(a), net the statutory definition of a negotiable
instrument and so would fall under the definition of a
negotiable instrunment in the UCC. He continued:

As a result, the state was no longer permtted to
di shonor these checks. This had cause the banks of
this state horrendous problens, and they'd been in
di spute with the state for nmany, many years on this.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 25, 2003



The exact contour of that decision have not yet been
determ ned; the state now recogni zes these warrants as
negoti abl e instrunents. And we - M. Grnero and I,
and the officials from the Departnent of Revenue -
over the weekend were trying to determ ne what the
|l egal inplication would be to sinply redefine checks
to include state warrants within the definition and
thereby bring these instrunents totally under the UCC
And that woul d have taken sonme tine to do it.

Nunber 2260

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he was prepared to offer an
amendnent; however, he nentioned discussions with M. Sylvester

and Ms. Garnero and the efforts they will nake over the interim
to check on how other states do it, for exanple, and cone back
to report to the legislature. [At that tine], if |anguage is

supported that would bring state warrants under the UCC, he said
he thinks that would be a good idea. He added, "But at the very

| east, nunber one, this bill brings it wthin the six-nonth
period of the UCC and will make it much sinpler and, nunber two,
instead of holding the noney in the general fund, wll bring it

under the uniformunclaimed property Act."
Number 2330

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked the difference between a warrant
and a check. He also asked if there is a procedure by which
sonmeone who is unable to "cash" for six nonths subsequently is
able to do so.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered yes [to the second question].
He noted that another Act passed in the 1980s was the uniform
uncl aimed property Act, which establishes an office in the
Department of Revenue and a regular procedure "for all Kkinds of

t hi ngs." For example, if sonmeone loses noney and it is
transferred to the police departnment, that wunclained property
goes to the Departnent of Revenue. He said, "It supplants the

old legal concept of escheat. W no |onger have escheat in this
state and the other states that have adopted [the wuniform
uncl ai med property Act]. And you can literally come back
forever and get your noney. And the state just holds it in
trust in the neantine.” In response to Representative
Berkowitz's first question, he said, "That's what we're trying
to find out." He said that under the National Bank of Al aska
case, [warrants] are legally negotiable instrunents.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 25, 2003



Nunber 2422
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ surm sed, "It's a synonynous term'

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said yes, but opined that probably

there will be no difference. He offered his feeling that for
clarity, the legislature should enact a statute that says the
term "check” includes a warrant. He added, "But |egally, under

this opinion anyway, they are negotiable instrunents and woul d
then fall under the UCC. "

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH r emar ked, "And that's what we're still trying to
wor k t hrough. ™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concurr ed. He said there just wasn't
enough tine and [the administration] wants this bill on the fast
track. He added that he thinks [the bill] is a good idea.

Nunber 2451

M5. GARNERO said the UCC has many provisions. She said deciding
whet her or not the state may be relinquishing rights under the
way it currently does business, by subjecting its warrants or
checks to the UCC, wll take sonme analysis. She said that
analysis wll be nmade as part of an overall business practice
anal ysis to replace statew de systens over the next few years.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested having sone nechanism over
the interimto, if necessary, have sonme hearing and work wth
the departnent on the issue, which will nodernize the departnent
and provide the legislative framework that is needed.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH recomrended putting that in the form of a
request. He said he is open to that.

Nunber 2516

M5. GARNERO reiterated that she intends to find out the |egal
difference between a warrant and a check. She said she does
know that the way banks are conpensated for a warrant is
different from a checking account. She renmarked, "W pay for
the warrants wupon presentation to us; we do not maintain
bal ances in the bank Iike we do in our personal checking
accounts. " She said this is what she always has been led to

believe is the difference between them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 25, 2003



M5. GARNERO, regarding Representative Berkow tz's question about
the general fund, said when "warrant stale-date” noney does go
back to the general fund, it sits there until claimnts conme for
it and "we" give it an appropriation. \Wen property goes to the

uncl ai med property account, it sits in the general fund, too,
waiting for claimants to conme forward. She said she doesn't
know if there will be nore or fewer claimants. M. Garnero said
she thinks there will be fewer warrants that ever go through the
process because it's part of inplementing the efficiencies,
which this legislation allows. She nentioned periodic reports
[ of uncashed warrants] and canceling those warrants. She said

she knows they go back to the general fund if they are stale-
dat ed.

Nunber 2579

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ said, "It seenms to nme that if we're
getting the $45,000 ... or $50,000, roughly, per year, on a two-
year deal, I'd like to know ... how much really reverts and no

one ever clainms a claimsubsequently."”
M5. GARNERO said she'd find out.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ requested that she find out what the
nunbers are for [the wvarious time periods, as previously
st at ed] .

Number 2604

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noted that half of the ["Stale Date
Warrant Re- Appropriation Request FY 2003-1"] list is under the
sanme nane.

M5. GARNERO explained that those are longevity bonus [itens].
In response to a followup question, she said she doesn't know
why [the person listed had not cashed the warrants].

Number 2625

RACHEL LEWS, Unclainmed Property Section, Treasury Division,
Department of Revenue, addressed Representative Berkowitz's
guestion regarding shortening the stale-dating to six nonths.
She pointed out that the shorter the period, the better the
chances are of locating people at their |ast-known address,
which results in fewer stale dates. She said she doesn't know
what [Ms. @Grnero's] nunbers wll be, but,  historically,
"t hrough unclaimed property in all 50 states, alnbst all of them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 25, 2003



are lessening the dormancy period of all kinds of unclained
property," including state warrants and governnent-issued
checks.

Number 2689
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what the normal period of tine is
under the wunclainmed property Act for "the turning in of

uncl ai med property."”

M5. LEWS answered that the statutory average is five years, but

there are itens that are specifically addressed. For exanpl e,
bank accounts are seven years, while traveler's checks are
fifteen. Regardi ng governnent checks, M. Lewis nentioned at
| east one year for abandonnent. She also nentioned due

diligence and [a period of] between six nonths and one year for
uncl ai med- property reporting.

Number 2735

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG hi ghlighted a change from one year in
the original bill to six nonths in the proposed CS. He asked if
that would nmesh with the unclaimed property Act or whether there
woul d be conflict.

M5. LEWS replied that she doesn't see any conflict because "the
one year they would turn ... over to us."” The six-nonth period,
she noted, is the working period "to streanline the paperwork to
conme into unclainmed properties.”

M5. GARNER added, "And that's to do the due diligence."

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG  asked, "Wbul d you start your
advertising after six nonths, so you'd put these people on the
list when you publish it?"

M5. LEWS said yes. She added that [those people on the list]
would also "go on the Internet.” Responding to a coment by
Representative G uenberg, she stated, "You' d be surprised

what kind of agencies end up wth wunclainmed property. ..
Sonetimes the checks just never nmake it to them and they have
no idea they ... never got a check."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his assunption that under the

uncl aimed property Act [or another Act perhaps], there is a
met hod of inmmediately getting that noney to [the owner].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 25, 2003



M5. LEWS responded, "We've tried to address sone of the better-
known agenci es and banks and federal governnments, you bet."

Nunber 2819

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report CSHB 109, Version 23-
LS0581\D, Kurtz, 3/24/03, out of <conmttee wth individual
recomnmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 109(STA) was reported from the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 31-1 NI Tl ATI VE/ REFERENDUM PETI Tl ONS
HIR 5-CONST AM | NI Tl ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 31, "An Act relating to initiative and
ref erendum petitions; and providing for an effective date,"”
along with HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5, Proposing an anmendnent
to the Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to
initiative and referendum petitions.

Nunmber 2880

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Alaska Mners Association

testified in support of HB 31, which he said makes minor but
i nportant changes. In recent years, groups opposing mning,
harvesting tinmber, trapping, hunting, and other traditional
activities have used initiative petitions in several states to
pl ace these itens on ballots. He said these groups are in |large
part funded by private, nonprofit corporations. The [question]
appears to be one of funding an issue that on the surface has
enotional appeal to the public, and the funding to fight the
issue is obtained through the foundations. Oten the issues
bei ng attacked have small, unorgani zed constituencies that can't
secure sufficient funding to informthe public of the other side
of the story, he asserted, and therefore the initiative passes.
He maintained that increasing the nunber of districts in which
si gnatures nust be obtained, as proposed under HB 31, would nake
it slightly nore difficult for these interest groups to bring
issues to the ballot while not elimnating that opportunity;
this is especially inportant in Alaska where renote and rura

areas often have a very limted voice in the |legislature.
M. Borell concluded by urging the passage of HB 31.

TAPE 03-29, SIDE B
Nunber 2997

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BILL WLLI AVMS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 31 and HIR 5, said tines have changed with the advent of
conputers and faxes; however, in renpote areas such as those on
Prince of Wales Island, which does have faxes and Internet,
those people weren't able to sign any of the petitions going
around the state.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if HB 31 allows a nethod for those
in renote areas to submt signatures for petitions via fax or
anot her manner beyond having to sign a book.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ W LLI AMS  expl ai ned t hat t he constitution
specifies that signatures have to be obtained from 10 percent of
those who voted in the last election and one from [each of the]
27 districts; it doesn't specify how the signature is to be
obtained. He said now there is daily mail and faxes that could
be wused to provide signatures for these initiatives and
ref erenduns. He characterized [this proposal] as exporting
denocracy fromthe urban areas to the rural areas.

Nunmber 2869

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that signatures
that were nailed in or faxed in would be invalid. He asked if
there is a way to [obtain signatures] through the mail.

REPRESENTATI VE W LLI AMS deferred to the Departnent of Elections.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH rel ated his understanding that HB 31 and HIR 5
are to be reviewed together. He noted that the next commttee
of referral is the House Judiciary Standing Committee.

REPRESENTATI VE W LLIAMS said he was going to request that the
House Judi ci ary St andi ng Comm ttee revi ew whet her a
constitutional anmendnent is necessary. Representative WIIlians
mentioned that he has a letter from the Departnent of Law on
this matter saying that the departnent doesn't know whether
[signatures obtained via mail or fax are invalid] because there
hasn't been case yet.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested a copy of the aforenentioned

| egal opi ni on. He said he is very sensitive to the balance of
power in government and that this process is an essential part
of the balance of power. He related that he didn't want Al aska

to becone a state in which there are lots of initiatives, which
is a confusing process for voters, but noted his reluctance to
pass constitutional anmendnents w thout a good reason.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 25, 2003



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH pointed out that the conmttee packet should
include the entire constitutional history on this matter.

Nunmber 2660

VIRG NI A BREEZE, Elections Projects Coordinator, Division of
El ecti ons, Ofice of the Lieutenant Gover nor, answer ed
Representative Seaton's earlier question by clarifying that all
signatures on petition books have to happen [in person] at the
| ocation of the petition book; nothing can be nuail ed.

Number 2631

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report HB 31 and HIR 5 out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 31 and HIR 5 were
reported fromthe House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
9:00 a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 25, 2003



